
EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
March 8, 2022 



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING 
 

March 8, 2022 
Meeting: 3:00 PM – 5:00 PM, Central 

Sheraton Panama City Beach Resort (Spanish Moss Room) 
WebEx Link: https://flclerks.webex.com/flclerks/j.php?MTID=m22270531daf83c4af3a90c12b85a7d40 

Meeting Code: 2306 353 8588, Password: CCOC 
Conference Call:  866-469-3239, Access Code: 2306 353 8588 

 
Call to Order ................................................................................................Hon. JD Peacock 
Invocation ...................................................................................................Hon. John Crawford 
Roll Call .......................................................................................................Hon. Tiffany Moore Russell 
 
1) Introduction and Agenda Approval .....................................................Hon. JD Peacock  

2) Approve Minutes from 12/16/21 Meeting ........................................Hon. Tiffany Moore Russell 

3) CCOC Office Treasurer’s Report ..........................................................Hon. Tiffany Moore Russell 

a) CFY 2021-22 

4) Committee Updates 

a) Budget Committee .........................................................................Hon. Tiffany Moore Russell 

b) PIE Committee ................................................................................Hon. Laura Roth 

c) Legislative Committee ...................................................................Hon. Carolyn Timmann 

5) Draft CCOC Telecommuting Policy ......................................................Marleni Brunner 

6) Executive Council Election Process and Timeframe ..........................Hon. Tiffany Moore Russell 

7) CCOC Data Management Process Update .........................................Jason Welty 

8) E-Notify Project Update ........................................................................Hon. JD Peacock 

9) Other Business .....................................................................................Hon. JD Peacock 

 

https://flclerks.webex.com/flclerks/j.php?MTID=m22270531daf83c4af3a90c12b85a7d40


 

 

Minutes of December 16, 2021 CCOC Executive Council Meeting 
 

 
The Executive Council of the Florida Clerks of Courts Operations Corporation (CCOC) held a 
meeting via WebEx on December 16, 2021. The agenda and materials were distributed in 
advance of the meeting and posted on the CCOC website.  
 

Call to Order and Invocation 
The December 16, 2021 meeting was called to order by Executive Council Chair JD Peacock 
at approximately 9:03 AM. Chair Peacock announced that the major purpose of the meeting 
was to initiate new contracts for the CCOC office as most of the current contracts will expire 
at the end of the calendar year. A couple of reports will also be presented. Chair Peacock 
asked Clerk Crawford to provide an invocation. 
 

Roll Call 
Secretary/Treasurer Tiffany Moore-Russell called the roll.  Council members present online 
were Chair Peacock, Vice-Chair Jeff Smith, Secretary/Treasurer Tiffany Moore-Russell, Clerk 
Stacy Butterfield, Clerk John Crawford, Clerk Todd Newton, Clerk Laura Roth, Clerk Harvey 
Ruvin, Judge Ronald Ficarrotta, Clerk Nikki Alvarez-Sowles, and Clerk Ken Burke. None were 
absent. Clerk Russell announced there was a quorum. 
 

1. Agenda Item 1 – Agenda Approval 
Chair Peacock introduced the agenda as presented. Chair Peacock stated that in 
section “Other Business” he will briefly talk about the preparation of the annual 
report, as well as a brief update on the e-notify project. Clerk Burke noted that he 
also wanted to bring up an item for discussion in “Other Business.”  
 
The agenda was approved and adopted by consent. 
 

2. Agenda Item 2 – Approve Minutes from 08/11/21 Meeting 
Chair Peacock called on Clerk Russell to present the minutes from the August 11, 
2021 Council meeting. 
 
Clerk Russell made a motion to approve the minutes of 8/11/21 meeting as 
presented. Clerk Ruvin seconded. The minutes were adopted by consent. 
 
 
 

3



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

3. Agenda Item 3 – CCOC Office Treasurer’s Report CFY 20-21 & CFY 21-22 
Clerk Russell began by thanking Executive Director, John Dew, and his financial staff at 
CCOC. Clerk Russell stated that the 2020-21 fiscal year ended only utilizing 82% of 
budget. This information is in the meeting packet. Starting out this fiscal year, with 
one month of expenditure data, the CCOC has only expended about $78,000 which is 
4% of the projected budget for 2021-22. Clerk Russell noted that the report is just for 
informational purposes. There were no questions from the Council. 
 

4. Agenda Item 4 – CCOC Contracts 
Chair Peacock called on Mr. Dew to lead the next agenda item which involves the use 
of contract services for the CCOC office. Mr. Dew pointed out that the CCOC currently 
has eight contracts to support the office that will expire at the end of December for 
such services as Clerk Education; janitorial; internal and external auditing; website 
hosting and maintenance; compliance services; IT services; and copier and lease 
services. He noted that the CCOC went through a process that follows State 
guidelines. He directed the Council to page 12 of the meeting packet which provides 
details on the current annual cost of the eight contracts, the proposed cost for the 
new contracts, and the vendors recommended to receive a contract for the services. 
Mr. Dew also pointed out a link on page 12 that provides all background information 
including the current contract we have for services that expire on December 31st, the 
request for quote documents sent out to vendors, and their received quotes. Those 
quotes were reviewed by CCOC staff along with Treasurer Clerk Russell. 
 
In addition, he noted that there were three contracts that had already been signed by 
CCOC leadership due to the timing of when those contracts expired, and he asked 
the Council to ratify leadership’s position of approving those contracts. Chair Peacock 
opened the floor for questions. 
 
Clerk Newton asked for clarification on why the chart on page 12 showed the 
estimated costs of the new contract for Compliance Services as $72,030 but the 
proposed annual maximum on the chart showed only $59,500. Mr. Dew explained 
Compliance Services in their bid was seeking to add to the previous contract they 
have with CCOC two new services they have not done in the past. One was to have 
them look at “Best Practices of Compliance” and the other was to look at the “Return 
of Investment in Compliance Services.” After reviewing the two added items, Mr. Dew 
stated that these are items that CCOC staff could do in-house if this was something 
the Council wanted done. Therefore, the new contract for compliance services would 
only continue to provide the same services as before. 
 
Clerk Burke asked if CCOC staff are considered FRS employees. Mr. Dew responded 
they are considered FRS employees as this was written into the statutes that created 
the Corporation. Clerk Burke went on to inquire whether they were considered State 
employees. Mr. Dew replied that they were not. Clerk Burke also asked what HR 
services specifically would be provided by The Krizner Group. Mr. Dew explained they 
are on retainer in case there is an HR issue. They conduct an audit annually of the 

4



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

CCOC office to ensure the CCOC is providing HR education to its staff and following 
HR rules. 
 
Clerk Smith asked about the IT Services contract and if such services could be 
provided to the CCOC by the FCCC. Mr. Dew explained that this was not a large 
volume contract and that a contractor would be responsible to provide services 
related to the CCOC’s computers, parts, and server. This vendor makes sure that all 
computers and servers are up to date and are working, and that CCOC’s cloud 
service is backed up. IT Services ensures equipment and software is installed 
correctly. 
 
Chair Peacock commented on the Clerk Education contract because the quote for 
services from the FCCC in the future is higher than what we have paid in the past. 
Included in the cost is an increase to have the Association provide staff to manage all 
our WebEx and virtual meetings so we can have consistency in the process and the 
CCOC staff can focus on the policy issues. The CCOC recognized that it would need a 
consistent process and platform because of the increase in virtual meetings due to 
Covid. FCCC provides hosting and managing the people on the call. That consistency 
across both the Association meeting, as well as the CCOC meeting really has been 
beneficial, as well as the continuing education and training. Chair Peacock believes 
the CCOC is getting a good product from the Association. 
 
Chair Peacock opened the floor for a motion to adopt the contracts as provided in 
addition to the contracts noted earlier that were already signed. 
 
Motion to adopt the eight contracts as provided, as well as adopt the contracts that 
were signed with the Krizner Group, DFS, and Brenda Sorensen. Clerk Butterfield 
made the motion and Clerk Newton seconded. The motion was adopted. 
 

5. Agenda Item 5 – Process for Review and Recommendation for Indigency Forms 
Chair Peacock introduced the next agenda item which is the Process for Review and 
Recommendation for Indigency Forms. Chair Peacock stated it is a collaboration with 
the FCCC and CCOC. Chair Peacock said that we are required to adopt the forms and 
forward them as a recommendation to the Supreme Court to be adopted. Clerk Roth 
mentioned that the Indigent form was presented to the PIE committee. The forms 
were thoroughly reviewed. The forms first went over to FCCC Best Practices 
Committee where “legal eagles” – a ton of attorneys – poured over them. Clerk 
Timmann had some concern about a suit that was filed so the PIE committee took 
that into consideration. The forms were discussed and lots of changes were made at 
the PIE committee. Clerk Roth stated that this was by no means any kind of rubber 
stamping and that the forms look the best and most consistent between the form 
types than they ever have. 
 
Chair Peacock opened the floor to discussion on the forms, and the recommendation 
to the Supreme Court. Clerk Alvarez-Sowles brought up an issue regarding the 
signature of the individual which is in the middle of the form as opposed to the end of 

5



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

the form. Clerk Alvarez-Sowles asked if there was any special consideration for this.  
Chair Peacock asked Jason Welty to present an explanation. Mr. Welty said that this 
issue was brought to our attention at CCOC by someone in the Legislature. There is 
research out there that suggests that if you sign before you make all your 
declarations there is a lesser likelihood of untruthfulness. That was the justification 
for putting the signature at the top rather than the bottom. 
 
Clerk Smith posed two questions regarding the regular Civil Indigent Form and the 
Dependency and Termination of Parental Rights form. The first question is why on the 
Dependency and Termination of Parental Rights is question #2 “Annual Total 
Income” then over on the regular Civil form we don’t have that it just reads Annual 
net income. Mr. Welty explained that CCOC worked with DCF and their Deputy 
Secretary, as well as the Director of Children’s and Legal Services. Those entities 
informed CCOC that one of the things that they can use this form is Annual Total 
Income. This will allow them to pull more dollars down from Title IV-E. One of the 
things that the Feds require is annual income and gross income, whereas statute 
only requires these forms to have net income. Therefore, the CCOC included annual 
income on the Termination of Parental Rights form. CCOC also included (SSI) 
Supplemental Security Income and Supplemental Security Income for children on this 
form because that is another requirement that the Federal government has for DCF 
in looking at total income. There is one other change that made for DCF which is 
“Other Income not on the List.” Clerk Smith also asked about section that reads “I 
have assets” the items here are jumbled between the two forms. Mr. Welty stated 
that it was simply a formatting issue. He also stated that the PIE committee has 
asked CCOC to get this form on one page. 
 
Clerk Kinzel stated that she thought Clerk Alvarez-Sowles had a very important point, 
because legally, she believes what you are attesting to usually precedes your 
signature of attestation. She felt it gives little recourse should a county find that the 
individual is lying. Clerk Kinzel believes that the CCOC should go with the legal 
methodology on signatory and attestation. Clerk Kinzel also stated that as Clerk 
Smith noted regarding the multiple forms, the boxes are in different locations due to 
formatting issues. It would be so much easier if all these forms were consistent, 
same, and simplified. Clerk Kinzel also noted the reference to other household, and 
asking how many people are in the household, and feels the income should say 
household income.  
 
Chair Peacock mentioned that Clerk Miller in the chat wrote that she did not like 
having the signature in the middle of the form. Chair Peacock added to the 
commentary by saying that he can’t remember the last time somebody has been held 
in contempt for lying on these forms. Clerk Kinzel added that in Collier County, if they 
find someone lying, they take action. Clerk Burke asked if there were any 
considerations to include on this form the question, “Are you represented by private 
counsel and is that counsel being paid by Non-Legal Services Counsel?” Clerk Burke 
stated that they see individuals that can pay for a private attorney but cannot pay the 
filing fees. Clerk Roth stated that there was some development around whether that 

6



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

can be held against them or considered; however, that’s not relevant on the form 
anymore. Clerk Burke noted that it appears on the Criminal Indigent Form and 
Termination of Parental Rights Form but not on the Civil Indigent Form. Clerk Roth 
stated that there are differences between the forms because its coming from 
different statutes and different requirements. Clerk Burke stated this issue is a timely 
conversation and possibly Judge Ficarrotta can weigh in on this issue. Judge 
Ficarrotta weighed in on the issue by stating that to the best of his recollection it is up 
to each individual judge. He would be happy to discuss with his other Chief Judges to 
bring this issue to their attention and communicate to their judges the seriousness of 
this issue. 
 
Clerk Roth was asked by Chair Peacock to pursue it in the future and to look into the 
related ministerial role of what Clerks can actually authorize. Clerk Roth responded 
that there is already a permissiveness in the current governing statutes and will look 
into this issue and address further. Clerk Burke pointed out that post determination 
is done at the very beginning of the process. A judge has determined that indeed 
there are assets that they can then impose the filing fee as part of the final 
judgment. Chair Peacock asked General Counsel on the call to weigh in on this topic. 
Rob Boyd explained what went into creating these forms. There were 18 different 
committees from Legal Aid, Prosecutors, Florida Bar, Public Defenders all submitting 
their changes. The changes were so drastic that in some cases they could not work 
together, namely the $25 filing fee. Legal Aid wanted that removed but we can’t 
because it is pursuant to statute.  
 
Clerk Butterfield wanted to follow up on the summarization because Clerk Roth is 
correct. Clerk Butterfield stated this has gone back and forth through the years as to 
whether clerks do ministerial or not. Part of the issue is the workload that it has 
created regarding the requirement to go out and search property records and titles to 
cars. Clerk Butterfield also commented on Clerk Burke’s comment regarding post 
determination where a judge has determined that indeed there are assets, and yet 
the Plaintiff and Defendant both file indigent forms seemingly to avoid paying the 
filing fees. 
 
Chair Peacock noted that there is great conversation regarding this issue and has 
notated that we still have the pursuit of some more broad conversations related to 
this topic. He stated that the CCOC will work with our Legislative Committee so they 
can dig a little deeper on some solutions to work toward. Chair Peacock asked 
Council members if they are ready to make a motion to move forward or if there a 
motion related to the form. Clerk Alvarez-Sowles remarked that on the form itself 
above the signature, regarding the Attestation Clause, that she was in agreement 
with the language used on the form. Chair Peacock stated that he was ready to make 
a motion to take the form back to the PIE Committee for further review and revisions. 
Chair Peacock stated that there is no specific timeline so long as the CCOC was 
working towards the goal. Chair Peacock asked Mr. Welty to confirm. Mr. Welty stated 
that Chair Peacock was correct. He also stated that as discussions were going on he 
has been able to re-arrange the form so that the asset section on all three forms are 

7



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

identical. As to the issue of language that Clerk Alvarez-Sowles has raised, that 
language is currently on Civil and Termination of Rights. The language is only a little 
bit different on the Criminal forms. Mr. Welty stated that the revision to the forms 
could be made during the meeting to make all forms the same. Chair Peacock asked 
the Council Members given the recommendation from Clerk Alvarez-Sowles, as well 
as the technical changes that we have already talked through, and that which Mr. 
Welty has indicated that Council can adopt as part of the recommendation today if 
there were no other issues. Clerk Roth stated there was only one issue that jumped 
out at her regarding whether some forms ask if they are represented by Attorney and 
some forms don’t. Clerk Roth stated that this issue needed more attention, and 
Council members should take a minute to look into and make sure. Mr. Welty noted 
that while we were on the call, he revised the forms to take into consideration the 
recommendations made. Chair Peacock recommended to the Council to adopt the 
provided forms with the technical changes stated, as well as the Attestation 
Language that Clerk Alvarez-Sowles highlighted. Chair Peacock sought a motion. 
 
Clerk Butterfield made the motion to approve the form as revised during the meeting 
and Clerk Alvarez-Sowles seconded the motion. Motion was adopted unanimously.   
 

6. Agenda Item 6 – Review and Approve CCOC Educational Assistance Program 
Chair Peacock turned the meeting over to Mr. Dew to go over the CCOC Educational 
Assistance Program. Mr. Dew stated that the information can be found on page 21 of 
the meeting packet. He indicated that the State of Florida provides as a benefit, 
tuition reimbursement for State employees. 
 
CCOC is not considered a State Agency, therefore CCOC employees are not eligible to 
receive this benefit. In order to support the recruitment of staff, as well as, to retain 
staff, it is essential that the CCOC offer tuition assistance as part of our employment 
package. Mr. Dew reviewed several Clerk’s office education assistance plans and 
spoke with several Clerks around Florida to learn how they provide tuition 
reimbursement. The attached proposed CCOC Education Assistance Program 
provides employees reimbursement of  $1,500 per fiscal year for undergraduate and 
$4,500 per fiscal year for graduate level programs. Mr. Dew believes that this is the 
best way for CCOC to attract and retain employees. He mentioned that currently three 
out of eight staff members are taking college classes right now. He appreciates that 
their involvement in college courses brings innovative ideas to the office that they 
share. 
 
Mr. Dew mentioned that CCOC has sufficient budget authority for this program. Chair 
Peacock opened the floor to all Council members to ask if they had questions or 
comments. Clerk Alvarez-Sowles stated that after reading through it there was some 
issues with the language matching from one section to the next. Mr. Dew said he 
would work with Clerk Alvarez-Sowles to clarify language to make sure that it all 
matches. On the last item mentioned CCOC originally looked at the idea of having 
employees stay with the CCOC for a year after being reimbursed but the State does 
not have that in their process so from that prospective it was very hard for Mr. Dew to 

8



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

include that. Chair Peacock asked Clerk Alvarez-Sowles if she was willing to work with 
Mr. Dew on the few policy comments that she had pointed out earlier. Clerk Alvarez-
Sowles stated that she would. 
 
Chair Peacock entertained a motion to adopt the program as presented with the 
authority for Mr. Dew to work with Clerk Alvarez-Sowles to clean up some of the policy 
language. 
 
Clerk Russell moved to approve the CCOC Educational Assistance Program with 
minor clarifications to be worked out with Clerk Alvarez-Sowles. Clerk Alvarez-Sowles 
seconded the motion. Motion adopted unanimously. 
 

7. Agenda Item 7 – Committee Updates 
Chair Peacock turned the meeting over to Griffin Kolchakian, CCOC Budget & 
Communications Director to present any updates concerning the Budget Committee. 
Mr. Kolchakian stated that the Budget Committee held its first meeting in the new 
county fiscal year on November 30, 2021. Mr. Kolchakian reported that the 
committee discussed budget items for the upcoming legislative session, the settle-up 
process, and established a 2022 committee workplan. Further, three new 
workgroups will be established to review specific items related to the budget 
development process. All those related documents were sent out to the Clerks last 
month. The next two committee meetings have been set, including a virtual meeting 
on Thursday, January 20, 2022, and an in-person in Orlando Wednesday, February 9, 
2022. Mr. Kolchakian reported that so far, this fiscal year, clerks have brought in 
more revenues than the REC projection and the expenditures data that is available 
indicates we are under the 1/12th of the budget. The CCOC will continue to track this 
and update the Budget Committee as the year progresses. 
 
Chair Peacock thanked Griffin and called on the Chair of the Budget Committee, 
Clerk Russell, to provide her input. Clerk Russell stated that Mr. Kolchakian covered 
the first meeting very well. She also expressed her thanks to CCOC staff for all they 
did in conducting the budget workshop right before Thanksgiving. This was well 
attended, and Clerk Russell wanted to acknowledge the event for those Council 
members who may not have been able to attend. Chair Peacock stated that Rafael 
Ali-Lozano is the new team member on the budget team. Mr. Lozano is a budget 
manager at CCOC and has taken over the role that Marleni Bruner had been fulfilling, 
as she will transition to a new role. Chair Peacock welcomed Mr. Lozano. 
 
Chair Peacock mentioned to the Council members that there is a report from the PIE 
Committee which is included in the meeting packet. Chair Peacock asked Clerk Roth 
if she had any further commentary to make with regarding the report. Clerk Roth 
stated that the report is straight forward unless anyone had any questions or 
comments to make. There were no questions. 
 
Chair Peacock informed everyone that there was no report from the Legislative 
Committee, but they were working in preparation for the 2022 Legislative Session. 

9



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

 
Chair Peacock discussed and described the status of the E-notify program project 
that Courts and the Clerks have worked together on to help assure individuals are 
notified of court hearings. He said it’s been a great partnership with the courts in the 
process and has been a great tool. His understanding is the program is expected to 
be funded again in 2022 and that we are making progress in the types of court 
divisions that will be using E-notify. 

 
8. Agenda Item 8 – Status of CCOC Data Management Process 

Chair Peacock called on Mr. Welty to give a brief update on this issue. Mr. Welty first 
began by thanking everyone on the call both from the clerk’s offices, as well as 
partners in the Legislature and Governors’ office. Mr. Welty reported that the CCOC 
has been working on this project for approximately 18 months, during which Covid 
derailed some of the progress that CCOC had made. CCOC has been looking at 
various software for data management that would help CCOC staff as well as clerk 
staff statewide. Mr. Welty went on to say that within the next month or so, CCOC 
hopes to put out a competitive procurement for a consultant who can help the CCOC 
in writing the technical scope and specifications of the Data Management software 
the CCOC is looking for. The CCOC team, Ms. Bruner, Mr. Kolchakian, Mr. Dew, and 
Mr. Welty, have met with many vendors and companies to see what is out there and 
what would work for clerks. Chair Peacock thanked Mr. Welty for his update and 
opened the floor to Council members for any questions or comments. There were 
none. 
 

9. Agenda Item 9 – Other Business 
Chair Peacock first presented and discussed the CCOC Annual Report. The theme will 
be similar to the themes you have heard on the legislative calls. He said the CCOC 
will try to get the report out to the Council members prior to submitting it to the 
Legislature to meet the deadline. There is still work to do, as well as some challenges 
that we have from a funding standpoint. The Annual Report is due annually by 
January 1. 
 
In another item under other business, Clerk Burke asked about the status of CCOC 
employees working from home and what is the mandate to work in the office. Mr. 
Dew responded that CCOC employees can work two days at home and three days at 
the office. This process seems to be working fine with his CCOC staff. Clerk Burke 
asked if there were written policies in place for working from home. Mr. Dew 
answered that the CCOC does not have any formal written policies for working from 
home, but he has set informal requirements each employee must follow. Mr. Dew 
asked Clerk Burke if he had anything that he could share with him that would be 
beneficial as a draft policy to review. Clerk Burke stated that CCOC should reach out 
to their HR contract vendor and invite them to provide us with guidelines for a 
government entity regarding a working from home policy. Clerk Burke believes that 
we do have to pay some attention as to how we monitor working from home from the 
management point of view. He also requested that this issue be placed on the 

10



 

 

EXECUTIVE COUNCIL MEETING – DECEMBER 16, 2021 
 

agenda for the next Council meeting in March. Chair Peacock said we could add the 
issue to next Council meeting’s agenda and ask Mr. Dew to bring back a policy. 
 
Chair Peacock opened the floor for any other questions. Clerk Alvarez-Sowles stated 
that during the last Council meeting Clerk Kinzel discussed that when we are looking 
at expenditures, we should look at more factors than just the Clerk’s weighted 
caseloads. Clerk Alvarez-Sowles asked Chair Peacock whether he wanted to ask one 
of the committees to head up a workgroup on those items. For example, the budget 
committee already has a workgroup that they created to look at the cost of living as 
an additional factor as well as other factors such as having multiple court locations 
within a county. Another issue could be to examine court-related expenditures 
regardless of where the revenues are coming from. If counties are going to be 
compared to one another, and some clerks are utilizing or obtaining revenues from 
county or recording revenue to pay for court-related expenditures, it’s not an apples-
to-apples comparison. In order to have that transparency, the CCOC should look at 
expenditures regardless of revenue sources, as long as, those expenditures are listed 
in s. 28.35, F.S. where it lists all the things that we are allowed to use that money for. 
Chair Peacock stated those were good comments. 
 
Chair Peacock said that during a recent visit and discussion with the new Clerks, he 
informed them that Clerks must show on their CCOC budget revenues from other 
sources. The Budget Committee historically has not been supportive requiring clerks 
to show their entire operations of court and non-court. The committee historically 
tends to shy away from requiring that information although statutorily the CCOC has 
the statutory authority to ask clerks to provide every operational revenue for their 
office. Chair Peacock said he does believe clerk have to show for a transparency 
perspective any revenues used to supplement the court-related operations of a 
Clerk’s office. This way CCOC can measure one Clerk’s office against another’s which 
is statutorily required. Clerk Kinzel thanked Chair Peacock for bringing this issue up 
and offered to serve on any volunteer subgroup. Clerk Kinzel stated that her office 
does not attempt to use any other local money because the courts are supposed to 
be funded by the State. Clerk Kinzel noted that if her office could keep the revenues 
they earn, they could do more. 
 
Chair Peacock thanked everyone for their comments and asked if there were any 
other questions or comments. No further comments from Clerks were made. No 
public comments were made. 
 
With no further action from the Council, Chair Peacock adjourned the meeting at 
11:00 AM. 

11



Agenda Item 3

12



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4A 
 
DATE:   March 8, 2022 
SUBJECT:  Budget Committee Update and Budget Forms 
COUNCIL ACTION: Approve the CFY 2022-23 Budget Forms 
 
 
OVERVIEW:  
The Budget Committee has met twice this year, and the next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, 
April 21 in Gainesville. The committee created three new workgroups to address issues that have 
continually come up during the budgeting process. These workgroups are: 

• Cost of Living Component Workgroup chaired by Clerk Godwin 
• Compliance Workgroup chaired by Clerk Maloy 
• New Judges Funding Workgroup chaired by Clerk Abruzzo 

 
The Compliance Workgroup and New Judges Funding Workgroup have each met twice so far and 
the Cost of Living Component Workgroup plans to begin meeting in the near future. 
 
In the coming months, the committee will build the CFY 2022-23 clerks’ budget. Based on current 
revenue projections, this budget will be almost $5 million higher than the current year budget; 
however, this number will likely change at this summer’s REC meeting. In February, the committee 
established the use of the reserve fund at the statutorily required 10%. In April, the committee will 
establish the Base Budget to set the starting place which will be built onto during the budget 
development process. Any funding requests a clerk has may be submitted to the CCOC by the 
statutory deadline of June 1. The committee will then review these issue requests and determine 
how to allocate any funding over the Base Budget. 
 
At the February Budget Committee meeting, the committee approved the CFY 2022-23 budget 
issue request forms to be submitted by each clerk’s office by June 1 (Meeting materials can be 
found here: https://flccoc.org/committees/budget/). These forms include the Budget Issues 
Form, the Revenue Projection Form, and the Clerk Certification Letter. CCOC staff has updated 
these forms from last year and they are substantially similar.  
 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Approve the CFY 2022-23 Budget Forms   
 
 
 

13

https://flccoc.org/committees/budget/


 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4A – BUDGET COMMITTEE UPDATE AND BUDGET FORMS 

LEAD STAFF:  Griffin Kolchakian, Budget and Communications Director 
  Rafael Ali-Lozano, Budget Manager I 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. CFY 2022-23 Budget Issues Form 
2. CFY 2022-23 Revenue Projection Form 
3. CFY 2022-23 Clerk Certification Letter 

14



County: Priority: 1 Issue Type:
Contact:

Recurring: Issue Category:

Case Processing Revenue Collection 
and Distribution

Financial Processing Requests for 
Records and 

Provide Ministerial 
Pro Se Assistance

Technology Services 
for External Users

Mandated Reporting 
Services

Jury Management Administration TOTAL

New FTE 0.00

Personnel $0
Operating $0

Capital $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Florida CCOC Budget Issue Form
County Fiscal Year 2022-23

ISSUE REQUEST DETAIL

CCOC Form Version DRAFT
Created 1/18/2022E-Mail Address:

Issue Title:  

This issue requests funding for…  

Does this issue request additional, newly created FTE?  
If so, how many?  
If requesting additional FTE, please include all related costs including salary and ALL benefits in this issue total.

Please provide a detailed  description of the budget issue including the amounts that are related to Personnel, Operating, or Capital costs, and any requested FTE.  Provide supporting documents, as needed.  The description should 
include the impact to the clerk's office if the issue is not funded and impact if reduction is taken.  Additional supporting documentation with county name in file name can be submitted to reports@flccoc.org . 

6.1 CountyName CFY 22-23 Budget Issue VerX

Agenda Item 4A - Attachment 1

15



County: Projection as of Date:

Contact: Version:

E-Mail Address:

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 YTD Total

-$      

-$      

-$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$     

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 YTD Total

s. 316.193, F.S. -$      

s. 28.241(1)(d), F.S. -$      

s. 318.18(18), F.S. -$      

All Other -$      

-$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$     

Issuance of a Summons

CFY 2022-23 Fine and Forfeiture Trust Fund Projection

CFY 2022-23 Chapter 2008-111 Projection

County Fiscal Year 2022-23
Florida CCOC Revenue Projection

CCOC Form Version DRAFT
Created 1/28/2022

Fine and Forfeiture Trust Fund Projection
Additional Notes: 

TOTAL FINE AND FORFEITURE TRUST FUND PROJECTION:

Fines, Fees, Service Charges, Court Costs, etc.
(Not Including Redirected 10% Fines)

Redirected 10% Fines

Chapter 2008-111 Projection
Additional Notes: 

TOTAL 2008-111 PROJECTION

Driving Under the Influence

All Other Line 47 Additional Revenues

Traffic Administration Fees

6.2 CountyName CFY2223 Revenue Projection Jun VerX

Agenda Item 4A - Attachment 2

16



FLORIDA CLERKS OF COURT OPERATIONS CORPORATION 
BUDGET ISSUE CERTIFICATION 
COUNTY FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Court, do herein attest to the following: 

1. Budget Issues requested for October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 as herein submitted
represent, to the best of my knowledge and belief, pursuant to ss. 28.35(3)(a), F.S., the salaries,
benefits, and costs for all (the gross budgeted expenditures) of the following court-related functions of
the office:

 Case maintenance
 Records management (all costs associated with storage, redaction, retrieval and maintenance not

included under Chapter 29)
 Court preparation and attendance
 Processing the assignment, reopening, and reassignment of cases
 Processing of appeals
 Collection and distribution of fines, fees, service charges, and court costs
 Processing of bond forfeiture payments
 Payment of jurors and witnesses and all Juror related costs including their payments
 Payment of expenses for meals and lodging provided to jurors
 Data collection and reporting
 Determinations of indigent status
 Paying reasonable administrative support costs to enable the Clerk of the Court to carry out above

court-related functions

(Note: Certification of this provision will allow for compliance with numerous provisions under s. 28.35, 
F.S., in which these court-related functions are referenced.)

2. Budget Issues submitted, to the best of my knowledge and belief, do not include expenditures
associated with local requirements deemed the responsibility of the county pursuant to s. 29.008, F.S.,
nor do the Budget Issues include expenditures for any non-court-related function of the office. Local
requirements include the following as defined by applicable statute:

 Facility Expenses (ss. 29.008(1)(a), F.S.)
 Construction or Lease Expenses (ss. 29.008(1)(b), F.S.)
 Maintenance (ss. 29.008(1)(c), F.S.)
 Utilities (ss. 29.008(1)(d), F.S.)
 Security (ss. 29.008(1)(e), F.S.)
 Communications (ss. 29.008(1)(f), F.S.)
 Radio Systems, existing (ss. 29.008(1)(g), F.S.)
 Multi-agency criminal justice information systems, existing (ss. 29.008(1)(h), F.S.)
 Specialized Programs (ss. 29.008(2), F.S.)

3. Revenues used to support court-related operations are included within the Revenue Projections
submitted. As per ss. 28.35(2)(f)3, F.S., court-related revenues projected in this budget will not be
used for non-court related purposes.

________________________________ ________________________________________________ 
DATE CLERK OF COURT SIGNATURE 

COUNTY 

Agenda Item 4A - Attachment 3

17



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4B 
 
DATE:   March 8, 2022 
SUBJECT:  PIE Committee Update 
COUNCIL ACTION: Approve PIE Committee Actions 
 
 
OVERVIEW:  
The CCOC Performance Improvement and Efficiencies (PIE) Committee met on Monday, February 
28, via WebEx. Meeting materials can be found here: 
https://flccoc.org/committees/performance-improvement-and-efficiencies-committee/ 
 
An update was provided regarding the membership of the PIE Workgroups as well as an update 
on the cases and subcases. There are two items that require codification by the Executive 
Council. 
 

1. CFY 2021-22 Quarter 1 Performance Measures and Action Plans report 
a. Posted on the CCOC website (https://flccoc.org/ccoc-reports/#pr) and submitted 

to the legislature by the required statutory deadline. 
2. Uniform Payment Plan 

a. Edits were made to include language that permits clerks offices to modify the form 
to meet locally available options and to customize to meet individual county needs 
provided the form remains substantially similar and to remove the word “willfully” 
as it is not in the statutory reference. 

 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: Approve PIE Committee actions.  
 
 
LEAD STAFF: Marleni Bruner, CCOC Performance, Policy, and Education Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
 

18

https://flccoc.org/committees/performance-improvement-and-efficiencies-committee/
https://flccoc.org/ccoc-reports/#pr


 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
DATE:   March 8, 2022 
SUBJECT:  CCOC Telecommuting Policy 
COUNCIL ACTION: Discuss and approve with amendments as needed. 
 
 
OVERVIEW: 
At the December 16, 2021 Executive Council meeting, CCOC staff was directed to develop a 
telecommuting policy to bring before the Executive Council for approval. Copies of telecommuting 
policies and forms were provided from Lake, Orange, Palm Beach, and Pasco counties. 
 
The attached draft policy takes into account the small office size of the CCOC (8 full-time and 2 
OPS), the various positions at the CCOC that are best suited for work from home, as well as the 
need to be able to work from home due to unforeseen circumstances, such that arose with 
COVID-19.  
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: Discuss and approve with amendments as needed.  
 
 
LEAD STAFF: Marleni Bruner, CCOC Performance, Policy, and Education Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. DRAFT – CCOC Telecommuting Policy 
2. DRAFT – CCOC Telecommuting Work Plan Agreement 

 
 

19



CCOC EMPLOYEE TELECOMMUTING POLICY 

OBJECTIVE 
To establish guidelines and procedures for telecommuting as an alternative work 
arrangement to: 

 attract and retain a diverse and talented workforce,
 reduce costs,
 improve productivity,
 accommodate special needs of employees,
 accommodate emergencies,
 increase employee motivation,
 better address work and family demands,
 and further the goals of the Clerks of Court Operations Corporation (CCOC).

OVERVIEW 
The CCOC supports telecommuting one or more days a week as an alternative work 
arrangement and encourages supervisors to implement telecommuting work plans, where 
appropriate, for eligible positions. Guidelines and criteria for telecommuting are outlined in 
this policy. This policy intends to allow employees and their supervisors to design their own 
telecommuting arrangements in accordance with the provisions of this policy. 

DEFINITIONS 
Eligible Positions – CCOC positions that can perform their regular duties and responsibilities 
of their positions through the use of computers or telecommunications. 

Established Telecommuting Hours – the agreed-upon work hours of an employee while 
telecommuting. 

Telecommuting – A work arrangement whereby employees are allowed to perform the regular 
duties and responsibilities of their positions, through the use of computers or 
telecommunication devices, at home or another place apart from the employee’s usual place 
of work. 

Telecommuting Work Plan – an agreement between the employee and the CCOC regarding 
telecommuting days and work hours, including length of meal breaks. 

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

20



 

DRAFT – February 2022    2 

CCOC EMPLOYEE TELECOMMUTING POLICY 

Temporary Telecommuting – a situation that arises and prohibits an employee from 
performing the regular duties and responsibilities of their positions at the main CCOC office 
for up to 10 business days. 
 
Unexpected Telecommuting – an unexpected, unforeseen situation that arises suddenly and 
prohibits an employee from performing the regular duties and responsibilities of their 
positions at the main CCOC office. 
 
 
POLICY 
The remote work program is not a formal employee benefit or an entitlement. It is an 
alternative method of meeting the needs of the CCOC and its employees, if appropriate, for 
the duties and responsibilities of the position. Employees are not required to work remotely 
and have the right to refuse to remote work if the option is made  available to them. 
 
1. Employees and supervisors are encouraged to work together to develop a 

Telecommuting Work Plan that meets the needs of the CCOC and the employee. 
 

2. Termination of Agreement: Employees have the right to terminate a Telecommuting Work 
Plan at any time and report to the main CCOC office instead. The employee should 
communicate with their supervisor regarding the change in their telecommuting status. 
The CCOC has the right to terminate a Telecommuting Work Plan with written notice to 
the employee of no less than 10 business days. 

 
3. Attendance and Pay: All pay, leave, and travel entitlement will be based on the 

employee’s official office. The employee’s time and attendance will be recorded as if 
performing official duties at the CCOC office. 

 
4. Paid Time Off (PTO): The CCOC’s PTO policy remains unaffected by the telecommuting 

agreement. Any requests for time off need to be pre-approved by the employee’s 
immediate supervisor. 

 
5. Performance Evaluation: The evaluation of the employee’s job performance will be 

based on established standards of the CCOC. Performance must remain satisfactory for 
an employee to continue telecommuting. 

 
6. Dependent care or childcare: Telework is not a substitute for dependent care or 

childcare. Employees are expected to make dependent and childcare arrangements 
when they work at the telework site. If such care is unavailable, the employee is expected 
to take PTO or other leave, as appropriate. 

 
7. Meetings: Employees participating in telework are prohibited from conducting face-to-

face meetings at the alternative worksite if it is the employee’s home. 
  
8. Work Assignments: Delivery or pick-up of materials, work assignments, and equipment 

maintenance should be handled at the CCOC office. The employee will meet with their 

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

21



 

DRAFT – February 2022    3 

CCOC EMPLOYEE TELECOMMUTING POLICY 

supervisor to receive assignments and review completed work as necessary or 
appropriate. The employee will complete all assigned work according to work procedures 
mutually agreed upon by the employee and the supervisor and attend all required 
meetings and/or training sessions.  
 
An employee may be required to work at the CCOC office on regular telecommuting 
workdays during regular work hours to meet workload requirements and demands, work-
related meetings, emergencies, trainings, or other events. 
 

9. Records Security: The employee must apply approved safeguards to protect CCOC 
records from unauthorized disclosure or damage and comply with applicable public 
records requirements outlined in Chapter 119, F.S. All records, papers, and 
correspondence must be safeguarded for return to the official worksite. The releasing or 
destroying of any records will only be done at the CCOC office, in accordance with 
statutes, regulations, and the CCOC records retention policy. Computerized files are 
considered official records and are similarly protected. 
 

10. CCOC-Owned Equipment: To effectively perform assigned tasks, the employee may use 
CCOC equipment at the employee’s telecommuting location with the approval of the 
CCOC. The equipment must be protected against damage and unauthorized use. CCOC 
owned equipment will be serviced and maintained by the CCOC. The employee’s 
responsibility is to promptly report any equipment and/or software problems to their 
supervisor or the CCOC’s technology help desk. 

 
11. Employee-Owned Equipment: An employee may use their personal equipment for 

telecommuting purposes. Equipment provided by the employee will be at no cost to the 
CCOC and maintained by the employee. The CCOC technology help desk may be 
consulted for work-related assistance at the employee’s risk. The CCOC is not liable for 
damages sustained to the employee’s personal equipment while performing work-
related activities. 

 
12. Travel: Travel from home to the CCOC office will not be reimbursed. All travel entitlement 

will be based on the main CCOC office. 
 

13. Income Tax: It will be the employee’s responsibility to determine any income tax 
implications of maintaining a home office area. The CCOC will not provide tax guidance 
nor assume any additional tax liabilities. 

 
14. Reimbursement: The CCOC will not purchase or reimburse employees for the cost of 

internet use. The employee may be eligible for reimbursement of authorized 
expenditures with prior approval. Office supplies and other items needed for use while 
telecommuting can be organized with the employee’s supervisor before beginning a 
Telecommuting Work Plan. 

 
15. Liability: The CCOC will not be liable for damages to the employee’s property due to 

participation in the telecommuting program. The employee certifies that their home 

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

22



 

DRAFT – February 2022    4 

CCOC EMPLOYEE TELECOMMUTING POLICY 

provides a safe working environment free of all safety and fire hazards. The CCOC is not 
responsible for operating cost, home maintenance, or any incidental cost (e.g., utilities) 
associated with using the employee’s residence. The employee agrees to hold the CCOC 
harmless against any and all claims, excluding worker’s compensation claims arising in 
the course of employment. 
 

16. Workers’ Compensation: The employee is covered by workers’ compensation if injured 
while performing official duties at the telecommuting location. If an injury is determined 
to have been caused by employee negligence or the employee’s failure to maintain safe 
working conditions over which the employee had control, the employee may be subject 
to disciplinary action. 

 
 
PROCESS 
To ensure accountability and compliance with public records and retention laws, alternative 
work schedules may be established according to the following procedures: 
 

1. An employee must request a telecommuting agreement via email to their supervisor. The 
email must include: 

a. the Telecommuting Work Plan requested (include the telecommuting hours 
requested, length of meal breaks, etc.) 

b. the length of the telecommuting request  
c. Example: An employee requests to work from home on Mondays and Tuesday from 

8 AM to 5 PM with a one-hour break for the next 6 months. 
2. Supervisors shall review telecommuting requests and work with the employee to make 

necessary adjustments. 
a. If approved by the supervisor, a work plan for the telecommuting request should 

be designed to fulfill operational demands and other appropriate criteria. 
b. Plans shall be submitted via email to the Executive Director for approval before 

implementation. 
i. This does not include unexpected or temporary telecommuting due to the 

employee’s illness or an immediate family member or other family emergency 
requiring ten business days or less outside the CCOC office. The supervisor 
can approve this on an as-needed basis with appropriate documentation. 

3. The Executive Director shall provide written approval or denial of a proposed work plan 
via email to the employee and their supervisor. 

a. Copies of denied or approved Telecommuting Work Plans will be recorded in the 
employee’s HR file. 

b. Denials of proposed Telecommuting Work Plans should include a justification for 
the denial or request for modification and resubmission. 

4. Modifications to approved Telecommuting Work Plans can be made at any time by the 
employee or supervisor and resubmitted to the Executive Director for final approval. 

5. Once a Telecommuting Work Plan is approved, the employee and supervisors will sign 
the CCOC Telecommuting Agreement and place it in the employee’s file. 

6. Supervisors should routinely review Telecommuting Work Plans to ensure the 
operational needs of the CCOC main office are continually met. 

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 1

23



CCOC Telecommuting Work Plan Agreement 

Date Requested: _____________________ 

Employee: ___________________________ 

Telecommuting Work Plan (TWP) Request (include days and hours, with meal breaks, and 
length of requested TWP): 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

AGREEMENTS 
The CCOC agrees to the following terms for approved Telecommuting Work Plans: 

1. Provide employees with an approved telecommuting work plan
2. Provide employees with the appropriate equipment to work remotely including,

a. access to a computer and network that meets the needs of the position
b. keyboard, mouse, mousepad, webcam, and speakers if not included with an

all-inclusive device such as a laptop,
c. docking station or secondary screen (contingent upon position type, available

inventory, or funding if lack of inventory exists)
d. instructions for connections necessary to perform their telecommuting duties.
e. desktop support while telecommuting

3. CCOC leadership and management will be available to assist employees in their
duties and responsibilities while telecommuting.

4. CCOC technology help desk will be available for assistance to the employee during
telecommuting work hours.
DRAFT

Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 2

24



TELECOMMUTING WORK PLAN AGREEMENT 

The employee agrees to the following terms for approved telecommuting agreements: 
1. Utilize only authorized and/or approved systems and software to perform work

functions during established telecommuting work hours.
2. Protect the confidentiality and sensitivity of accessed information and actively

safeguard CCOC information against unauthorized access from telecommuting
locations.

3. Be available during established telecommuting work hours.
4. Participate in required audio, video, and/or text communications during established

telecommuting work hours.
5. Respond timely to communications during established telecommuting hours.
6. Accurately record work time and work activities to justify recorded work hours.
7. Make alternative arrangements for family care needs that occur during the telework

schedule. Employee shall not have primary responsibility for childcare, dependent
adult care, or other activities not ordinarily part of their job functions during
established telecommuting hours.

8. Ensure the alternate work environment is
a. clearly defined as a workspace that is free from distractions and obstructions,
b. adequately illuminated,
c. well ventilated and heated,
d. outfitted with supplies and equipment (both CCOC and employee-owned) that

are in good condition, such as chair, desk, monitors, mouse, mouse pad,
keyboard, noise canceling headphones, webcam, microphone capabilities,
speakers, etc.

e. organized to minimize risks of fire, spontaneous combustion or other health
and safety hazards such as ensuring:

i. extension cords are properly grounded,
ii. exposed or frayed wiring and cords are repaired or replaced

immediately upon detection,
iii. electrical enclosures (switches, outlets, receptacles, and junction

boxes) have tight-fitting covers or plates,
iv. surge protectors are used for computers, fax machines, and printers,

and
v. heavy items are securely placed on sturdy stands close to walls.

f. organized to keep the computer components out of direct sunlight and away
from heaters,

g. secure from unauthorized access to assigned office computer or CCOC files.
9. Ensure that computer software and programs are updated routinely as dictated by

the CCOC information technology plan, including security and anti-virus software.

Employee Signature: _________________________________________ Date: ___________ 

Supervisor Signature: _________________________________________ Date: ___________ 

Executive Director Signature: ___________________________________ Date: ___________ 

DRAFT
Agenda Item 5 - Attachment 2

25



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
DATE:     March 8, 2022 
SUBJECT:    CCOC Executive Council General Election 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Approve CCOC Executive Council Election Schedule 
 
 
 
OVERVIEW:  
Each year the CCOC is required to conduct an election of four Executive Council members who 
are elected for a two-year term. The CCOC Plan of Operations in Section 2-3 requires specific 
timeframes for the process. Access the Plan of Operations here: https://flccoc.org/about-
us/corporation/.  
 
Attachment 1 is a draft “election schedule” for review and approval. 
 
The four members who have their current two-year terms ending in June are Clerk John Crawford; 
Clerk JD Peacock; Clerk Stacy Butterfield; and Clerk Harvey Ruvin. Clerks within each of the 4 
individual population groups, including the Clerks whose terms expire, can submit their intent to 
run for the position by April 14th. The four newly elected Council members would start their two-
year term after they are sworn in at the June 6th, 2022, Corporation meeting. 
 
The four members who currently have another year of their term remaining and do not need to 
seek election this year are Clerk Todd Newton; Clerk Jeffery Smith; Clerk Laura Roth; and Clerk 
Tiffany Moore Russell. 
 
Ballots are to be sent from Clerks directly to a CPA to hold, open, and count the ballots. 
 
 
COMMITTEE ACTION: Approve CCOC Executive Council Election Schedule 
 
 
LEAD STAFF: John Dew, CCOC Executive Director 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Draft 2022 Executive Council General Election Schedule 

26

https://flccoc.org/about-us/corporation/
https://flccoc.org/about-us/corporation/


 

 

2022 EXECUTIVE COUNCIL GENERAL ELECTION 
 
 
 
 

MARCH 30 Secretary/Treasurer shall give all Clerks written notification of 
upcoming election.  
  

APRIL 14 Deadline for receipt of Interest Survey   
  

MAY 13 Distribute ballots    
  

MAY 30 Ballot receipt deadline   
  

JUNE 2 Open ballots 
 
CPA shall certify notification to the Executive Council and Corporation 
members.  
  

JUNE 6 Elected Executive Council Members sworn in at Corporation Meeting.  
 
 
 

27


	0 Packet Cover 030822
	1 AGENDA Executive Council 030822
	2 EC Minutes 121621 - DRAFT
	3 CCOC January 2022 Financial Report
	4A MEMO Budget Committee Update and Budget Forms Approval
	4A.1 CountyName CFY 22-23 Budget Issue VerX
	4A.2 CountyName CFY 22-23 Revenue Projection Jun VerX
	4A.3 CountyName CFY 22-23 Budget Issue Certification
	4B MEMO PIE Committee
	5 MEMO Telecommuting Policy
	5.1 CCOC Telecommuting Policy DRAFT
	5.2 CCOC Telecommuting Agreement
	6 MEMO CCOC Election Process
	6.1 CCOC Election Process



